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DESCRI%THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Federal Office Building on Broadway bptween Seventh and
Eighth Avenues is in the Gothic Revival style. Construction was
begun under Permit 552 sometime around 1875 at a cost of $368,326.27.

imestone from Bowling Green, Kentucky, was the major material

\ The Federal Building was built in four sections. The center
portion including the clock tower was begun in September of 1875. A
rear portion was added in 1903 and the wings 96 feet by 94 feet were
added to the east and west ends of the structure in 1961.

Although the center section was not finished until 1882, the
corner stone was laid in 1877 by President Rutherford B. Hayes.

William A. Potter of New York is known to have been the super-
vising architect. He had been the architect for several buildings
at Princeton University. The design so pleased Washington officials
that it was chosen to be displayed at the Centennial Exposition of
1876 in Philadelphia.

The intricate relief and pinnacles were hand carved, which was
probably the only method that this could be attained in the 1870's.
True to the Gothic style stained glass windows framed in stone and
set in lead were used¢” These can be viewed from within the tower.

The interior of the building contains ornate plaster and
wrought iron. There is a spiral staircase which winds its way up
from the fourth floor to the balconies under the clock tower.

MMuch of the interior trim work is solid cherry and the hardware
solid brass. NThere are fireplaces in many rooms and the walls are
two feet thick.

The Howard Company guaranteed that each of the four clock
faces would keep the correct time within fifteen seconds. Since
then the mechanisms have been replaced with electrical works.

The Customs House or Federal Office Building is located within
a two block area with other buildings, of similar period and
architecture, which already are on the National Register.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE: .

The building now known as the Federal Office Building has had
a somewhat varied history since its beginnings around 1875. When
the idea was originally conceived for a federal building in the
Nashville area, it was to be called the Customs House, Courthouse,
Post Office Building. Later, the name was shortened to Customs
House. By 1906 it was known as Customs House and Post Office. 1In
1948 the stone edifice was known as the Federal Office Building.

The building presently is the home of the Nashville District
Corps of Engineers and the U.S. Geological Survey, all of which
are to move to an annex of the U.S. Courthouse when it is built.

It has been said that the Customs House was a factor in the
Rutherford B. Hayes-Samuel J. Tilden electoral dispute. 1In this
election there were 21 contested votes in the Electoral College,
most of which were in the South. Four states, Louisiana, South
Carolina, Florida, and Oregon submitted two sets of electoral
returns. As a result, both parties claimed victory.

In order that the stalemate might be settled in his favor,
Hayes played for the southern votes by saying that he would
nominate a Southerner to his cabinet and would immediately bring
an end to Reconstruction. Hayes did fulfill his promises by nomi-
nating David M. Key of Tennessee as Postmaster General and by
withdrawing all Federal troops from the southern states.

The building of the Customs House was part of a move to pump

faith Hayes was present at the dedication of the corner stone.
Thus, the structure is significant for political as well as
architectural reasons.

Federal money into the economy of the depressed South. To show good




"100th Year Nears For Customs House™, Nashville Tennessean,

February 1972
Interviews with Mr. Leland R. Johnson and Mr. John McLemore
Clayton's History of Davidson County ‘

Woodward, Comer Vann, Reunion and Reaction

Boston, Little, Brown, 1966
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89:665), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:

National [7] State [] Local X
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Titte EXecutive Director
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I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register. . .« . VI

Chief, Office of Archeology and Hi§toric Preservation
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